
 

 

  AGENDA 
WORCESTER TOWNSHIP BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 

BUSINESS MEETING 
WORCESTER TOWNSHIP COMMUNITY HALL 

WEDNESDAY, DECEMBER 21, 2022 - 7:30 PM 
 
CALL TO ORDER 
 
 ANNOUNCEMENTS:  

- An Executive Session was held on December 12th to discuss litigation, personnel, and real 
estate. 
- This meeting is being video recorded for broadcast. 

 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
 

ATTENDANCE 
 
 

INFORMATIONAL ITEMS 
 

 

PUBLIC COMMENT 
 

 A five minute per person limit. 
 
 

OFFICIAL ACTION ITEMS 
 

a) consent agenda 
 A motion to approve a consent agenda that includes the following items: 

i. Treasurer’s Report and other Monthly Reports for November 2022. 
ii. bill payment for November 2022. 

iii. November 16, 2022, Work Session minutes; and, 
iv. November 16, 2022, Business Meeting minutes. 

 

b) Motions 
i. Property Tax Stipulation, 1423 Reiner 

 
c) 2023 Budget Message: Worcester Township Treasurer, Nicole Quagliarello 

 
d) Resolutions 

i. Resolution 2022-19, Act 57, an act relating to the collection of taxes levied by 
counties, school districts, and municipalities, conferring powers and imposing 
duties on tax collectors. 

ii. Resolution 2022-20 Plan Revision for new land development (sewer), LD 2022-
03, Zacharczuk 

iii. Resolution 2022-21 Preliminary Land Development Approval for LD 2022-03, 
Zacharczuk. 

iv. Resolution 2022-22, Final Land Development Approval, Huganir. 
v. Resolution 2022-23, A resolution to amend the Worcester Township Personnel 

Manual. 
vi. Resolution 2022-24, Adoption of the 2023 Worcester Township Budget. 

 



 

 

e) Ordinance Adoption – 22-294 – Chapter 150 (Zoning) – An ordinance to amend certain 
provisions of the Township Code. 

 
 

OTHER BUSINESS 
 
 

PUBLIC COMMENT 
 

 A five minute per person limit. 
 
 

ADJOURNMENT 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

 
UPCOMING MEETINGS 

 
 

 
Meetings to be held at Worcester Township Community Hall, 1031 Valley Forge Road. 









































Building Permit

B-2021-408

1805 BERKS RD

$0.00

Fire Alarm System Modifications

11/17/2022

Parcel Number: Location Address:

0.00

Description:

Building Permit $4.50 $224.50

Owner: MYERS A ROSS

Parcel Info:

Keystone Fire & Security Contractor:

Zoning:

B-2022-26

2696 ELDER CIR

$0.00

new SFD - 2696 Elder Way (Lot 58)

11/9/2022

Parcel Number: Location Address:

0.00

Description:

Building Permit $4.50 $3,429.72

Owner:

Parcel Info:

Toll Mid-Atlantic L.P. Co., Inc.Contractor:

Zoning:

B-2022-44

2620 Skippack Pike

$0.00

new SFA - Tamarack Circle - 2 (Lot 81), 4 (Lot 82) & 6 (Lot 83)

11/21/2022

Parcel Number: Location Address:

0.00

Description:

Building Permit $4.50 $7,069.16

Owner: TOLL MID-ATLANTIC LP COMPANY INC

Parcel Info:

Toll Mid-Atlantic L.P. Co., Inc.Contractor:

Zoning:

B-2022-67

2615 HAWTHORN DR

$0.00

new SFD - 2615 Hawthorn Drive (Lot 107)

11/1/2022

Parcel Number: Location Address:

0.00

Description:

Building Permit $4.50 $3,122.25

Owner:

Parcel Info:

Toll Mid-Atlantic L.P. Co., Inc.Contractor:

Zoning:

B-2022-341

3401 SKIPPACK PIKE

$0.00

Installation of new commercial kitchen at former 19 Bella 

11/30/2022

Parcel Number: Location Address:

0.00

Description:

Building Permit $4.50 $505.20

Owner: MARKEL DAVID F

Parcel Info:

Contractor:

Zoning:

B-2022-355

1039 NICOLE DR

$0.00

Install inground swimming pool in the rear yard

11/3/2022

Parcel Number: Location Address:

0.00

Description:

Building Permit $4.50 $242.00

Owner: PANESAR YADVINDER & JANICE M

Parcel Info:

Anthony & Sylvan Corp. Pools Contractor:

Zoning:

Permit Report - 11/01/2022 to 11/30/2022

Applicant Type Lot #Permit # Lot Size (Sq. Ft.)Const. Cost UCC Fee Total CostIssue Date

Phone: 610-584-1410

Worcester PA 19490

1721 Valley Forge Road

Worcester Township

1Run On: 12/16/2022 10:09:53 AM

reports/reports.aspx?module_id=permit&report_id=8&permitID=32569
reports/reports.aspx?module_id=permit&report_id=8&permitID=32785
reports/reports.aspx?module_id=permit&report_id=8&permitID=32874
reports/reports.aspx?module_id=permit&report_id=8&permitID=33008
reports/reports.aspx?module_id=permit&report_id=8&permitID=34481
reports/reports.aspx?module_id=permit&report_id=8&permitID=34550


Building Permit

B-2022-382

3141 METHACTON AVE

$0.00

Construction of a New Single Family Dwelling

11/16/2022

Parcel Number: Location Address:

0.00

Description:

Building Permit $4.50 $1,658.58

Owner: GUARDINO FRANK S & KRISTELLE

Parcel Info:

Rotelle Development Co.Contractor:

Zoning:

B-2022-388

2620 Skippack Pike

$0.00

Construction of a 6,349 s.f. single family dwelling

11/3/2022

Parcel Number: Location Address:

0.00

Description:

Building Permit $4.50 $251.13

Owner: TOLL MID-ATLANTIC LP COMPANY INC

Parcel Info:

Toll Mid-Atlantic L.P. Co., Inc.Contractor:

Zoning:

B-2022-391

2676 HAWTHORN DR

$0.00

Installation of a 22kw generator

11/3/2022

Parcel Number: Location Address:

0.00

Description:

Building Permit $4.50 $102.00

Owner: MILLER SCOTT

Parcel Info:

Schreiner Electrical Services Contractor:

Zoning:

B-2022-392

1741 VALLEY FORGE RD

$0.00

Change in Tenant - Commercial U & O Inspection

11/11/2022

Parcel Number: Location Address:

0.00

Description:

Building Permit $0.00 $100.00

Owner: 1741 VALLEY FORGE ROAD LP

Parcel Info:

Contractor:

Zoning:

B-2022-393

3422 MILL RD

$0.00

Installation of 20 AC solar Panels - Rear side of house roof

11/1/2022

Parcel Number: Location Address:

0.00

Description:

Building Permit $4.50 $124.50

Owner: CATALINA CONSTRUCTION LLC

Parcel Info:

Sky Solar SolutionsContractor:

Zoning:

B-2022-396

2822 MORRIS RD

$0.00

Replace existing oil boiler

11/1/2022

Parcel Number: Location Address:

0.00

Description:

Building Permit $4.50 $89.50

Owner: SEIBERT LINDA A & DAVID O

Parcel Info:

Horizon ServicesContractor:

Zoning:

Permit Report - 11/01/2022 to 11/30/2022

Applicant Type Lot #Permit # Lot Size (Sq. Ft.)Const. Cost UCC Fee Total CostIssue Date

Phone: 610-584-1410

Worcester PA 19490

1721 Valley Forge Road

Worcester Township

2Run On: 12/16/2022 10:09:53 AM

reports/reports.aspx?module_id=permit&report_id=8&permitID=34675
reports/reports.aspx?module_id=permit&report_id=8&permitID=34710
reports/reports.aspx?module_id=permit&report_id=8&permitID=34716
reports/reports.aspx?module_id=permit&report_id=8&permitID=34728
reports/reports.aspx?module_id=permit&report_id=8&permitID=34734
reports/reports.aspx?module_id=permit&report_id=8&permitID=34746


Building Permit

B-2022-397

2611 HAWTHORN DR

$0.00

Installation of 20 kw NG Generator

11/1/2022

Parcel Number: Location Address:

0.00

Description:

Building Permit $4.50 $172.00

Owner:

Parcel Info:

Genpro PowerContractor:

Zoning:

B-2022-398

111 MUSTANG WAY

$0.00

Installation of 22 KW Generac generator

11/3/2022

Parcel Number: Location Address:

0.00

Description:

Building Permit $4.50 $74.50

Owner: BLUM JACQUELINE M & EDWARD D

Parcel Info:

Torrisi & Co, Inc. Contractor:

Zoning:

B-2022-399

2253 WARNER RD

$0.00

install gas fireplace insert

11/1/2022

Parcel Number: Location Address:

0.00

Description:

Building Permit $4.50 $117.00

Owner: LITTLE PAUL & JUDY

Parcel Info:

Salter's FireplaceContractor:

Zoning:

B-2022-400

2277 WARNER RD

$0.00

Emergency Sewer Repair

11/1/2022

Parcel Number: Location Address:

0.00

Description:

Building Permit $4.50 $94.50

Owner: PYLE LARA & CRAPARO JASON TYLER

Parcel Info:

Roto Rooter Contractor:

Zoning:

B-2022-401

222 CASPIAN LN

$0.00

Extend existing deck from 8x16 to 16 x 16

11/14/2022

Parcel Number: Location Address:

0.00

Description:

Building Permit $4.50 $109.50

Owner: HEIDECK ANNEMARIE C

Parcel Info:

Ryan and Sons General ContractingContractor:

Zoning:

B-2022-402

2669 HAWTHORN DR

$0.00

Finish existing basement

11/14/2022

Parcel Number: Location Address:

0.00

Description:

Building Permit $4.50 $428.48

Owner: GU YAN & WANG JUFANG

Parcel Info:

Casey Remodeling LLCContractor:

Zoning:

Permit Report - 11/01/2022 to 11/30/2022

Applicant Type Lot #Permit # Lot Size (Sq. Ft.)Const. Cost UCC Fee Total CostIssue Date

Phone: 610-584-1410

Worcester PA 19490

1721 Valley Forge Road

Worcester Township

3Run On: 12/16/2022 10:09:53 AM

reports/reports.aspx?module_id=permit&report_id=8&permitID=34747
reports/reports.aspx?module_id=permit&report_id=8&permitID=34780
reports/reports.aspx?module_id=permit&report_id=8&permitID=34782
reports/reports.aspx?module_id=permit&report_id=8&permitID=34785
reports/reports.aspx?module_id=permit&report_id=8&permitID=34793
reports/reports.aspx?module_id=permit&report_id=8&permitID=34795


Building Permit

B-2022-403

2033 WENTZ CHURCH RD

$0.00

Replace existing heater and mini split

11/3/2022

Parcel Number: Location Address:

0.00

Description:

Building Permit $4.50 $89.50

Owner: CUCE ALDO J & CUCE JEAN M & CUCE 
FRANK &

Parcel Info:

Quality Degree, IncContractor:

Zoning:

B-2022-404

2620 Skippack Pike

$0.00

New 6,349 single family dwelling

11/16/2022

Parcel Number: Location Address:

0.00

Description:

Building Permit $4.50 $251.13

Owner: TOLL MID-ATLANTIC LP COMPANY INC

Parcel Info:

Toll Mid-Atlantic L.P. Co., Inc.Contractor:

Zoning:

B-2022-405

3331 CUSTER WAY

$0.00

Replace windows and stucco with Hardi Board siding

11/3/2022

Parcel Number: Location Address:

0.00

Description:

Building Permit $4.50 $104.50

Owner: MANSUY JANE WEBSTER DECD U/W

Parcel Info:

Tri-County Contracting CorpContractor:

Zoning:

B-2022-406

2520 STONY CREEK RD

$0.00

Installation of new 60A circuit from basement main panel to garage and Tesla G3 Connector

11/3/2022

Parcel Number: Location Address:

0.00

Description:

Building Permit $4.50 $32.00

Owner: ZHOU WEI & LU CHEN

Parcel Info:

Aratech ServicesContractor:

Zoning:

B-2022-409

3205 SKIPPACK PIKE

$0.00

Renovation of unit #209 Meadowlark Point

11/21/2022

Parcel Number: Location Address:

0.00

Description:

Building Permit $4.50 $646.35

Owner: MEADOWOOD CORPORATION THE

Parcel Info:

Berks Ridge Company Enterprises, Inc.Contractor:

Zoning:

B-2022-410

2101 COUNTRY VIEW LN

$0.00

Construct new deck and patio in rear yard

11/14/2022

Parcel Number: Location Address:

0.00

Description:

Building Permit $4.50 $109.50

Owner: SRINGARI NANDAGOPOL & SANGEETHA

Parcel Info:

archadeck of NW PhiladelphiaContractor:

Zoning:

Permit Report - 11/01/2022 to 11/30/2022

Applicant Type Lot #Permit # Lot Size (Sq. Ft.)Const. Cost UCC Fee Total CostIssue Date

Phone: 610-584-1410

Worcester PA 19490

1721 Valley Forge Road

Worcester Township

4Run On: 12/16/2022 10:09:53 AM

reports/reports.aspx?module_id=permit&report_id=8&permitID=34798
reports/reports.aspx?module_id=permit&report_id=8&permitID=34800
reports/reports.aspx?module_id=permit&report_id=8&permitID=34803
reports/reports.aspx?module_id=permit&report_id=8&permitID=34804
reports/reports.aspx?module_id=permit&report_id=8&permitID=34807
reports/reports.aspx?module_id=permit&report_id=8&permitID=34812


Building Permit

B-2022-411

19 TAMARACK CIR

$0.00

Construct 374 s.f. deck 30" above grade

11/16/2022

Parcel Number: Location Address:

0.00

Description:

Building Permit $4.50 $109.50

Owner:

Parcel Info:

Steptoe Siedkowski Custom Builders, Inc.Contractor:

Zoning:

B-2022-412

2620 Skippack Pike

$0.00

Construct 224 s.f. deck 30" above grade

11/16/2022

Parcel Number: Location Address:

0.00

Description:

Building Permit $4.50 $109.50

Owner: TOLL MID-ATLANTIC LP COMPANY INC

Parcel Info:

Steptoe Siedkowski Custom Builders, Inc.Contractor:

Zoning:

B-2022-413

2620 Skippack Pike

$0.00

Construct 208 s.f. deck 30" above grade

11/16/2022

Parcel Number: Location Address:

0.00

Description:

Building Permit $4.50 $109.50

Owner: TOLL MID-ATLANTIC LP COMPANY INC

Parcel Info:

Steptoe Siedkowski Custom Builders, Inc.Contractor:

Zoning:

B-2022-414

2620 Skippack Pike

$0.00

Construct 234 s.f. deck 30" above grade

11/16/2022

Parcel Number: Location Address:

0.00

Description:

Building Permit $4.50 $109.50

Owner: TOLL MID-ATLANTIC LP COMPANY INC

Parcel Info:

Steptoe Siedkowski Custom Builders, Inc.Contractor:

Zoning:

B-2022-415

2620 Skippack Pike

$0.00

Construct 224 s.f. deck 30" above grade

11/21/2022

Parcel Number: Location Address:

0.00

Description:

Building Permit $4.50 $109.50

Owner: TOLL MID-ATLANTIC LP COMPANY INC

Parcel Info:

Steptoe Siedkowski Custom Builders, Inc.Contractor:

Zoning:

B-2022-416

2620 Skippack Pike

$0.00

Construct 224 s.f. deck 30" above grade

11/21/2022

Parcel Number: Location Address:

0.00

Description:

Building Permit $4.50 $109.50

Owner: TOLL MID-ATLANTIC LP COMPANY INC

Parcel Info:

Steptoe Siedkowski Custom Builders, Inc.Contractor:

Zoning:

Permit Report - 11/01/2022 to 11/30/2022

Applicant Type Lot #Permit # Lot Size (Sq. Ft.)Const. Cost UCC Fee Total CostIssue Date

Phone: 610-584-1410

Worcester PA 19490

1721 Valley Forge Road

Worcester Township

5Run On: 12/16/2022 10:09:53 AM

reports/reports.aspx?module_id=permit&report_id=8&permitID=34838
reports/reports.aspx?module_id=permit&report_id=8&permitID=34839
reports/reports.aspx?module_id=permit&report_id=8&permitID=34840
reports/reports.aspx?module_id=permit&report_id=8&permitID=34841
reports/reports.aspx?module_id=permit&report_id=8&permitID=34842
reports/reports.aspx?module_id=permit&report_id=8&permitID=34843


Building Permit

B-2022-417

2620 Skippack Pike

$0.00

Construct 256 s.f. deck 30" above grade

11/21/2022

Parcel Number: Location Address:

0.00

Description:

Building Permit $4.50 $109.50

Owner: TOLL MID-ATLANTIC LP COMPANY INC

Parcel Info:

Steptoe Siedkowski Custom Builders, Inc.Contractor:

Zoning:

B-2022-418

2620 Skippack Pike

$0.00

Construct 220 s.f. deck 30" above grade

11/16/2022

Parcel Number: Location Address:

0.00

Description:

Building Permit $4.50 $109.50

Owner: TOLL MID-ATLANTIC LP COMPANY INC

Parcel Info:

Steptoe Siedkowski Custom Builders, Inc.Contractor:

Zoning:

B-2022-419

2620 Skippack Pike

$0.00

Construct 224 s.f. deck 30" above grade

11/21/2022

Parcel Number: Location Address:

0.00

Description:

Building Permit $4.50 $109.50

Owner: TOLL MID-ATLANTIC LP COMPANY INC

Parcel Info:

Steptoe Siedkowski Custom Builders, Inc.Contractor:

Zoning:

B-2022-420

2620 Skippack Pike

$0.00

Construct 240 s.f. deck 30" above grade

11/21/2022

Parcel Number: Location Address:

0.00

Description:

Building Permit $4.50 $109.50

Owner: TOLL MID-ATLANTIC LP COMPANY INC

Parcel Info:

Steptoe Siedkowski Custom Builders, Inc.Contractor:

Zoning:

B-2022-421

2620 Skippack Pike

$0.00

Construct 208 s.f. deck 30" above grade

11/21/2022

Parcel Number: Location Address:

0.00

Description:

Building Permit $4.50 $109.50

Owner: TOLL MID-ATLANTIC LP COMPANY INC

Parcel Info:

Steptoe Siedkowski Custom Builders, Inc.Contractor:

Zoning:

B-2022-422

2620 Skippack Pike

$0.00

Construct 208 s.f. deck 30" above grade

11/21/2022

Parcel Number: Location Address:

0.00

Description:

Building Permit $4.50 $109.50

Owner: TOLL MID-ATLANTIC LP COMPANY INC

Parcel Info:

Steptoe Siedkowski Custom Builders, Inc.Contractor:

Zoning:

Permit Report - 11/01/2022 to 11/30/2022

Applicant Type Lot #Permit # Lot Size (Sq. Ft.)Const. Cost UCC Fee Total CostIssue Date

Phone: 610-584-1410

Worcester PA 19490

1721 Valley Forge Road

Worcester Township

6Run On: 12/16/2022 10:09:53 AM

reports/reports.aspx?module_id=permit&report_id=8&permitID=34844
reports/reports.aspx?module_id=permit&report_id=8&permitID=34845
reports/reports.aspx?module_id=permit&report_id=8&permitID=34846
reports/reports.aspx?module_id=permit&report_id=8&permitID=34847
reports/reports.aspx?module_id=permit&report_id=8&permitID=34848
reports/reports.aspx?module_id=permit&report_id=8&permitID=34849


Building Permit

B-2022-425

2697 HAWTHORN DR

$0.00

Finish existing basement

11/30/2022

Parcel Number: Location Address:

0.00

Description:

Building Permit $4.50 $772.68

Owner: KHAN FARID & SUON SOKREINE

Parcel Info:

Jeffrey Burns CarpentryContractor:

Zoning:

B-2022-426

2610 WINDSTORM WAY

$0.00

Install 10.220 kw roof-mounted solar PV system 

11/21/2022

Parcel Number: Location Address:

0.00

Description:

Building Permit $4.50 $152.00

Owner: BALAICH JANE & JARED N

Parcel Info:

Green Power Energy, LLCContractor:

Zoning:

B-2022-428

2657 HAWTHORN DR

$0.00

Construction of a 370 s.f. deck on the rear of a single family dwelling

11/21/2022

Parcel Number: Location Address:

0.00

Description:

Building Permit $4.50 $109.50

Owner: ZHAO ZHIFENG & CHU HAIXI

Parcel Info:

High Q Carpentry, LLCContractor:

Zoning:

B-2022-429

2620 Skippack Pike

$0.00

Finish Basement 

11/21/2022

Parcel Number: Location Address:

0.00

Description:

Building Permit $4.50 $262.51

Owner: TOLL MID-ATLANTIC LP COMPANY INC

Parcel Info:

Contractor:

Zoning:

B-2022-430

2251 BERKS RD

$0.00

Renovate Existing 1st Floor Bathroom

11/16/2022

Parcel Number: Location Address:

0.00

Description:

Building Permit $4.50 $202.00

Owner: KASPER LUKE ANDREW & MICHELLE 
ELIZABETH

Parcel Info:

Gauntlett Construction Inc.Contractor:

Zoning:

B-2022-431

2606 WISTER CT

$0.00

Replacing decking and railing on existing rear deck

11/14/2022

Parcel Number: Location Address:

0.00

Description:

Building Permit $4.50 $104.50

Owner: ERICKSON JOSEPH L &

Parcel Info:

RJE Home RemodelingContractor:

Zoning:

Permit Report - 11/01/2022 to 11/30/2022

Applicant Type Lot #Permit # Lot Size (Sq. Ft.)Const. Cost UCC Fee Total CostIssue Date

Phone: 610-584-1410

Worcester PA 19490

1721 Valley Forge Road

Worcester Township

7Run On: 12/16/2022 10:09:53 AM

reports/reports.aspx?module_id=permit&report_id=8&permitID=34852
reports/reports.aspx?module_id=permit&report_id=8&permitID=34853
reports/reports.aspx?module_id=permit&report_id=8&permitID=34882
reports/reports.aspx?module_id=permit&report_id=8&permitID=34883
reports/reports.aspx?module_id=permit&report_id=8&permitID=34884
reports/reports.aspx?module_id=permit&report_id=8&permitID=34885


Building Permit

B-2022-434

2231 LOCUST DR

$0.00

Replace section of lateral from house to yard

11/14/2022

Parcel Number: Location Address:

0.00

Description:

Building Permit $4.50 $94.50

Owner: HALDEMAN JONATHAN M & CONWAY 
AMANDA E

Parcel Info:

CARNEY PLUMBING, HEATING, AND 
COOLING

Contractor:

Zoning:

B-2022-437

114 JASPER CT

$0.00

Installationof a 22kw generator with NG

11/23/2022

Parcel Number: Location Address:

0.00

Description:

Building Permit $4.50 $102.00

Owner: MOTTS FREDERICK C & ELLEN S

Parcel Info:

Hawke Electrical Inc.Contractor:

Zoning:

B-2022-438

2602 RESOLUTION RD

$0.00

EV Tesla Charger

11/30/2022

Parcel Number: Location Address:

0.00

Description:

Building Permit $4.50 $32.00

Owner: YANG SHERRY XIMONG &

Parcel Info:

JDV Electric, LLCContractor:

Zoning:

B-2022-440

2603 RESOLUTION RD

$0.00

346 square foot deck over 30" with electric and gas line.

11/30/2022

Parcel Number: Location Address:

0.00

Description:

Building Permit $4.50 $207.00

Owner: DRAGANOSKY DAVID J & KIMBERLY A

Parcel Info:

Keystone Custom Decks, LLCContractor:

Zoning:

B-2022-441

2960 DEFFORD RD

$0.00

Upgrades to Sewage Treatment Plant

11/23/2022

Parcel Number: Location Address:

0.00

Description:

Building Permit $0.00 $0.00

Owner: WORCESTER TOWNSHIP

Parcel Info:

F. W. Houder, Inc.Contractor:

Zoning:

B-2022-442

2502 CRESTLINE DR

$0.00

Master bath remodel

11/30/2022

Parcel Number: Location Address:

0.00

Description:

Building Permit $4.50 $219.50

Owner: CLARK DAVID S & CHERYL M

Parcel Info:

Oetzel Construction LLCContractor:

Zoning:

Permit Report - 11/01/2022 to 11/30/2022

Applicant Type Lot #Permit # Lot Size (Sq. Ft.)Const. Cost UCC Fee Total CostIssue Date

Phone: 610-584-1410

Worcester PA 19490

1721 Valley Forge Road

Worcester Township

8Run On: 12/16/2022 10:09:53 AM

reports/reports.aspx?module_id=permit&report_id=8&permitID=34902
reports/reports.aspx?module_id=permit&report_id=8&permitID=34914
reports/reports.aspx?module_id=permit&report_id=8&permitID=34932
reports/reports.aspx?module_id=permit&report_id=8&permitID=34948
reports/reports.aspx?module_id=permit&report_id=8&permitID=34950
reports/reports.aspx?module_id=permit&report_id=8&permitID=34951


Building Permit

B-2022-444

108 BRINDLE CT

$0.00

Remove old deck and construct new deck 14'x20'

11/30/2022

Parcel Number: Location Address:

0.00

Description:

Building Permit $4.50 $109.50

Owner: LIGHTCAP PAUL S & NANCY J

Parcel Info:

Salvatore CarboneContractor:

Zoning:

B-2022-446

1431 TWOS GLEN LN

$0.00

Installation of a PV Groud Mount Solar System

11/30/2022

Parcel Number: Location Address:

0.00

Description:

Building Permit $4.50 $152.00

Owner: MAURER RICHARD R & LISA

Parcel Info:

Public Service Solar, LLCContractor:

Zoning:

B-2022-448

2552 MORRIS RD

$0.00

Removal of existing basement oil tank and replacing with new in same location

11/30/2022

Parcel Number: Location Address:

0.00

Description:

Building Permit $4.50 $89.50

Owner: MCQUEEN JOYCE E &

Parcel Info:

Clyde S. Walton, Inc.Contractor:

Zoning:

B-2022-450

2531 CRESTLINE DR

$0.00

Direct replacement of existing gas furnace and air conditioner unit

11/30/2022

Parcel Number: Location Address:

0.00

Description:

Building Permit $4.50 $89.50

Owner: JADHAV PRAVIN R & SHINDE SHEETAL

Parcel Info:

Quality Degree, IncContractor:

Zoning:

$225.00Total UCC Fee: Total Cost: $23,160.19$0.00Total Const. Cost:

Zoning Permit

Z-2022-257

1039 NICOLE DR

$0.00

Grading for in-ground swimming pool

11/3/2022

Parcel Number: Location Address:

0.00

Description:

Zoning Permit $0.00 $365.00

Owner: PANESAR YADVINDER & JANICE M

Parcel Info:

Anthony & Sylvan Corp. Pools Contractor:

Zoning:

Z-2022-276

2110 WENTZ CHURCH RD

$0.00

175' of 48" split rail fence in front & side yard

11/1/2022

Parcel Number: Location Address:

0.00

Description:

Zoning Permit $0.00 $27.50

Owner: WETTER ROBERT A & AMANDA C

Parcel Info:

Wetter Landscaping Inc.Contractor:

Zoning:

Permit Report - 11/01/2022 to 11/30/2022

Applicant Type Lot #Permit # Lot Size (Sq. Ft.)Const. Cost UCC Fee Total CostIssue Date

Phone: 610-584-1410

Worcester PA 19490

1721 Valley Forge Road

Worcester Township

9Run On: 12/16/2022 10:09:53 AM

reports/reports.aspx?module_id=permit&report_id=8&permitID=34954
reports/reports.aspx?module_id=permit&report_id=8&permitID=34956
reports/reports.aspx?module_id=permit&report_id=8&permitID=34967
reports/reports.aspx?module_id=permit&report_id=8&permitID=34969
reports/reports.aspx?module_id=permit&report_id=8&permitID=34552
reports/reports.aspx?module_id=permit&report_id=8&permitID=34790


Zoning Permit

Z-2022-277

1001 KRIEBEL MILL RD

$0.00

Installation of 96 linear feet of 8' high chain link fence

11/11/2022

Parcel Number: Location Address:

0.00

Description:

Zoning Permit $0.00 $27.50

Owner: METHACTON SCHOOL DISTRICT

Parcel Info:

Eagleville Fence Co. Inc.Contractor:

Zoning:

Z-2022-278

1410 REINER RD

$0.00

Installation of 54" high aluminum fence in side & rear yard

11/11/2022

Parcel Number: Location Address:

0.00

Description:

Zoning Permit $0.00 $27.50

Owner: MEOLI ANTHONY MICHAEL &

Parcel Info:

Heritage Fence & Deck, LLCContractor:

Zoning:

Z-2022-279

2585 COLD SPRING RD

$0.00

Installation of aluminum 4.5' fence in rear yard

11/2/2022

Parcel Number: Location Address:

0.00

Description:

Zoning Permit $0.00 $27.50

Owner: ELESKANDARANI HAZEM & KANDIL SAHAR

Parcel Info:

Fence CityContractor:

Zoning:

Z-2022-281

2620 Skippack Pike

$0.00

Grading for New Single Family Dwelling

11/9/2022

Parcel Number: Location Address:

0.00

Description:

Zoning Permit $0.00 $365.00

Owner: TOLL MID-ATLANTIC LP COMPANY INC

Parcel Info:

Toll Mid-Atlantic L.P. Co., Inc.Contractor:

Zoning:

Z-2022-282

2565 COLD SPRING RD

$0.00
New inground swimming Pool & Stormwater management - 23.5% impervious coverage granted by ZHB 
8/23/22 #22-12

11/7/2022

Parcel Number: Location Address:

0.00

Description:

Zoning Permit $0.00 $365.00

Owner: ADEWUNMI OBAFEMI & IDAYAT

Parcel Info:

Platinum PoolsContractor:

Zoning:

Z-2022-284

2892 CREST TER

$0.00

Installation of 200 lf of 6' high fence in rear yard 

11/21/2022

Parcel Number: Location Address:

0.00

Description:

Zoning Permit $0.00 $27.50

Owner: SIEVER-GROSSO SHARI & GROSSO JOHN

Parcel Info:

Montco FenceContractor:

Zoning:

Permit Report - 11/01/2022 to 11/30/2022

Applicant Type Lot #Permit # Lot Size (Sq. Ft.)Const. Cost UCC Fee Total CostIssue Date

Phone: 610-584-1410

Worcester PA 19490

1721 Valley Forge Road

Worcester Township

10Run On: 12/16/2022 10:09:53 AM

reports/reports.aspx?module_id=permit&report_id=8&permitID=34791
reports/reports.aspx?module_id=permit&report_id=8&permitID=34792
reports/reports.aspx?module_id=permit&report_id=8&permitID=34796
reports/reports.aspx?module_id=permit&report_id=8&permitID=34799
reports/reports.aspx?module_id=permit&report_id=8&permitID=34801
reports/reports.aspx?module_id=permit&report_id=8&permitID=34808


Zoning Permit

Z-2022-285

3327 CUSTER WAY

$0.00

Grading for inground swimming pool 

11/7/2022

Parcel Number: Location Address:

0.00

Description:

Zoning Permit $0.00 $365.00

Owner: DORAZIO PAUL & MARIA T

Parcel Info:

ECB Contractor:

Zoning:

Z-2022-287

1001 KRIEBEL MILL RD

$0.00

Installation of 1241' of 8' heigh pre-existing non-conforming chain link fence

11/11/2022

Parcel Number: Location Address:

0.00

Description:

Zoning Permit $0.00 $27.50

Owner: METHACTON SCHOOL DISTRICT

Parcel Info:

Contractor:

Zoning:

Z-2022-288

2617 HAWTHORN DR

$0.00

Installation of 225' 54" heigh aluminum fence in the rear and side of property.

11/11/2022

Parcel Number: Location Address:

0.00

Description:

Zoning Permit $0.00 $27.50

Owner:

Parcel Info:

Contractor:

Zoning:

Z-2022-289

2640 HAWTHORN DR

$0.00

Install 400 l.f. of 4' aluminum fence in rear yard

11/14/2022

Parcel Number: Location Address:

0.00

Description:

Zoning Permit $0.00 $27.50

Owner:

Parcel Info:

Paramount FencingContractor:

Zoning:

Z-2022-298

1796 HAWKS NEST LN

$0.00

107' of 54" aluminum fence installed in rear yard

11/30/2022

Parcel Number: Location Address:

0.00

Description:

Zoning Permit $0.00 $27.50

Owner: NEWELL THOMAS J & ANNE MARIE

Parcel Info:

Fawcett FencingContractor:

Zoning:

$0.00Total UCC Fee: Total Cost: $1,707.50$0.00Total Const. Cost:

$24,867.69Grand Total Cost:Grand Total UCC Fee: $225.00Grand Total Const. Cost: $0.00

Permit Report - 11/01/2022 to 11/30/2022

Applicant Type Lot #Permit # Lot Size (Sq. Ft.)Const. Cost UCC Fee Total CostIssue Date

Phone: 610-584-1410

Worcester PA 19490

1721 Valley Forge Road

Worcester Township

11Run On: 12/16/2022 10:09:53 AM

reports/reports.aspx?module_id=permit&report_id=8&permitID=34809
reports/reports.aspx?module_id=permit&report_id=8&permitID=34878
reports/reports.aspx?module_id=permit&report_id=8&permitID=34881
reports/reports.aspx?module_id=permit&report_id=8&permitID=34887
reports/reports.aspx?module_id=permit&report_id=8&permitID=34992


Worcester, PA
This report was generated on 12/3/2022 8:35:28 PM

Worcester Volunteer Fire Department

Incidents by Shift for Date Range

SHIFT # INCIDENTS
Fire 28

Fire Police 3
Officers Investigation 4

TOTAL: 35

Start Date: 11/01/2022 | End Date: 11/30/2022

Doc Id: 27
emergencyreporting.com

Incidents with multiple EXPOSURES, with distinct stations, may create a slight difference between the report 
total and total number of actual incidents for the DATE RANGE provided.  The totals reflect the # INCIDENTS 
each STATION was assigned.  Only REVIEWED incidents included.

Page # 1 of 1

Fire Call Avg Attendance: 23.6

FP Call Avg Attendance: 5.3

Drill Average Attendance: 36.5

Daytime Calls Twp Employees Assisted: 10 

Call Man Hours: 421.5

Drill Man Hours: 180

Total Time on Scenes: 21:16:56

Events Attended/Hosted: 3 



Worcester, PA
This report was generated on 12/3/2022 8:37:29 PM

Worcester Volunteer Fire Department

Basic Incident Info with Number of Responding Apparatus and Personnel for Date Range

DATE INCIDENT # ADDRESS INCIDENT TYPE SHIFT ZONE # APP. # PERS.

11/03/2022 2022-251 SKIPPACK PIKE 551 - Assist police or other governmental 
agency Fire Police 86 - SKIPPACK 1 6

11/03/2022 2022-252 3155  DOE BROOK RD 150 - Outside rubbish fire, other Fire 83 - WORCESTER 3 27

11/04/2022 2022-253 126  BRINDLE CT 600 - Good intent call, other Officers Investigation 83 - WORCESTER 1 3

11/05/2022 2022-254 2844  DEFFORD RD 138 - Off-road vehicle or heavy equipment 
fire Fire 83 - WORCESTER 3 25

11/10/2022 2022-255 1725  VALLEY FORGE RD 111 - Building fire Fire 83 - WORCESTER 3 30

11/10/2022 2022-256 3258  FISHER RD 440 - Electrical  wiring/equipment problem, 
other Fire 83 - WORCESTER 1 30

11/11/2022 2022-257 2105  DEEP MEADOW LN 745 - Alarm system activation, no fire - 
unintentional Fire 83 - WORCESTER 2 22

11/11/2022 2022-258 101 N MIDLAND AVE 311 - Medical assist, assist EMS crew Fire 53 - LOWER PROVIDENCE 2 24

11/12/2022 2022-259 1401  MORRIS RD 111 - Building fire Fire 33 - WHITPAIN 3 32

11/12/2022 2022-260 2576  BEAN RD 141 - Forest, woods or wildland fire Fire 83 - WORCESTER 5 20

11/13/2022 2022-261 2030  HOLLIS RD 745 - Alarm system activation, no fire - 
unintentional Fire 83 - WORCESTER 2 22

11/14/2022 2022-262 2401  ELM CIR 745 - Alarm system activation, no fire - 
unintentional Fire 83 - WORCESTER 3 22

11/15/2022 2022-263 2201  LOCUST DR 745 - Alarm system activation, no fire - 
unintentional Fire 83 - WORCESTER 2 22

11/15/2022 2022-264 SKIPPACK PK & CEDARS RD 
RD 322 - Motor vehicle accident with injuries Fire Police 86 - SKIPPACK 1 8

11/16/2022 2022-265 1725  VALLEY FORGE RD 745 - Alarm system activation, no fire - 
unintentional Fire 83 - WORCESTER 1 23

11/16/2022 2022-266 1725  VALLEY FORGE RD 745 - Alarm system activation, no fire - 
unintentional Fire 83 - WORCESTER 1 22

11/18/2022 2022-267 1802  BETH LN 111 - Building fire Fire 76 - TOWAMENCIN 2 19

11/18/2022 2022-268 2115  BERKS RD 745 - Alarm system activation, no fire - 
unintentional Fire 83 - WORCESTER 3 18

11/20/2022 2022-269 2045  BETHEL RD 444 - Power line down Fire 83 - WORCESTER 5 31

11/20/2022 2022-270 2045  BETHEL RD 444 - Power line down Fire 83 - WORCESTER 5 25

Start Date: 11/01/2022 | End Date: 11/30/2022

Doc Id: 948
emergencyreporting.com

Only REVIEWED incidents included.

Page # 1 of 2



DATE INCIDENT # ADDRESS INCIDENT TYPE SHIFT ZONE # APP. # PERS.
11/20/2022 2022-271 2530  BEAN RD 111 - Building fire Fire 83 - WORCESTER 6 17

11/21/2022 2022-272 GERMANTOWN PIKE 324 - Motor vehicle accident with no 
injuries. Fire Police 53 - LOWER PROVIDENCE 1 2

11/22/2022 2022-273 1725  VALLEY FORGE RD 745 - Alarm system activation, no fire - 
unintentional Fire 83 - WORCESTER 1 24

11/22/2022 2022-274 GERMANTOWN PIKE 322 - Motor vehicle accident with injuries Fire 83 - WORCESTER 4 20

11/23/2022 2022-275 1725  VALLEY FORGE RD 745 - Alarm system activation, no fire - 
unintentional Officers Investigation 83 - WORCESTER 1 2

11/23/2022 2022-276 STATION 89 571 - Cover assignment, standby, moveup Fire 89 - HARLEYSVILLE 2 14

11/23/2022 2022-277 640  Meetinghouse RD 744 - Detector activation, no fire - 
unintentional Fire 89 - HARLEYSVILLE 1 6

11/24/2022 2022-278 2558  CRESTLINE DR 745 - Alarm system activation, no fire - 
unintentional Fire 83 - WORCESTER 3 29

11/25/2022 2022-279 3165  GERMANTOWN PIKE 511 - Lock-out Officers Investigation 83 - WORCESTER 1 1

11/26/2022 2022-280 BERKS RD & SKIPPACK 
PIKE 322 - Motor vehicle accident with injuries Fire 83 - WORCESTER 4 24

11/28/2022 2022-281 VALLEY FORGE RD AND 
MOHILL DR 611 - Dispatched & cancelled en route Officers Investigation 83 - WORCESTER 1 1

11/28/2022 2022-282 3150  DOE BROOK RD 736 - CO detector activation due to 
malfunction Fire 83 - WORCESTER 3 25

11/29/2022 2022-283 2939  MICHELE DR 442 - Overheated motor Fire 61 - EAST NORRITON 2 24

11/29/2022 2022-284 1161  FAIRVIEW AVE 611 - Dispatched & cancelled en route Fire 33 - WHITPAIN 1 24

11/30/2022 2022-285 2950  POTSHOP RD 631 - Authorized controlled burning Fire 83 - WORCESTER 4 22

TOTAL # INCIDENTS: 35 

Doc Id: 948
emergencyreporting.com

Only REVIEWED incidents included.

Page # 2 of 2



Worcester, PA
This report was generated on 12/3/2022 8:38:01 PM

Worcester Volunteer Fire Department

Count of Incidents by Incident Type per Zone

INCIDENT TYPE # INCIDENTS % of TOTAL
33 - WHITPAIN

111 - Building fire 1 2.86%

611 - Dispatched & cancelled en route 1 2.86%

Zone: 33 - WHITPAIN Total Incident: 2 5.71%

53 - LOWER PROVIDENCE

311 - Medical assist, assist EMS crew 1 2.86%

324 - Motor vehicle accident with no injuries. 1 2.86%

Zone: 53 - LOWER PROVIDENCE Total Incident: 2 5.71%

61 - EAST NORRITON

442 - Overheated motor 1 2.86%

Zone: 61 - EAST NORRITON Total Incident: 1 2.86%

76 - TOWAMENCIN

111 - Building fire 1 2.86%

Zone: 76 - TOWAMENCIN Total Incident: 1 2.86%

83 - WORCESTER

111 - Building fire 2 5.71%

138 - Off-road vehicle or heavy equipment fire 1 2.86%

141 - Forest, woods or wildland fire 1 2.86%

150 - Outside rubbish fire, other 1 2.86%

322 - Motor vehicle accident with injuries 2 5.71%

440 - Electrical  wiring/equipment problem, other 1 2.86%

444 - Power line down 2 5.71%

511 - Lock-out 1 2.86%

600 - Good intent call, other 1 2.86%

611 - Dispatched & cancelled en route 1 2.86%

631 - Authorized controlled burning 1 2.86%

736 - CO detector activation due to malfunction 1 2.86%

745 - Alarm system activation, no fire - unintentional 10 28.57%

Incident Status: Reviewed | Start Date: 11/01/2022 | End Date: 11/30/2022

Doc Id: 1390
emergencyreporting.com

Report shows count of incidents for Status selected.

Page # 1 of 2



Zone: 83 - WORCESTER Total Incident: 25 71.43%

86 - SKIPPACK

322 - Motor vehicle accident with injuries 1 2.86%

551 - Assist police or other governmental agency 1 2.86%

Zone: 86 - SKIPPACK Total Incident: 2 5.71%

89 - HARLEYSVILLE

571 - Cover assignment, standby, moveup 1 2.86%

744 - Detector activation, no fire - unintentional 1 2.86%

Zone: 89 - HARLEYSVILLE Total Incident: 2 5.71%

TOTAL INCIDENTS FOR All ZONES: 35 100%

Doc Id: 1390
emergencyreporting.com

Report shows count of incidents for Status selected.

Page # 2 of 2



Worcester, PA

This report was generated on 12/3/2022 8:39:50 PM

Worcester Volunteer Fire Department

Count of Classes and People by Class Category with Class Hours and Man Hours for Date Range

CLASS COUNT TOTAL CLASS HOURS COUNT OF PEOPLE TOTAL MAN HOURS

Thursday Night Drill 2 5:00 73 180:00

GRAND TOTALS: 2 05:00 73 180:00

Passed/Failed: Both Passed and Failed | Start Date: 11/01/2022 | End Date: 11/30/2022

Doc Id: 1625
emergencyreporting.com

This report lists the actual count of Reviewed classes and the class hours, and the number of people who attended 
those classes and the total Man Hours for each Class Category.   This report pulls training hours from the Training 
Code Hours field on the Info Page.

Page # 1 of 1



 

 

MINUTES 
WORCESTER TOWNSHIP BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 

WORK SESSION MEETING 
WORCESTER TOWNSHIP COMMUNITY HALL 
WEDNESDAY, NOVEMBER 16, 2022 – 6:30 PM 

 
CALL TO ORDER 
 
Chair DeLello called the meeting to order at 6:30 PM. 
 
 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
 

ATTENDANCE 
 
All three Supervisors were in attendance. 
 
 

INFORMATIONAL ITEMS 
 
There were no informational items presented. 

 
 

PUBLIC COMMENT 
 

 

There was no public comment. 
 

PRESENTATIONS 
 
Doug Drake, President of the Worcester Fire Department, provided an overview of the recent fire at 
Worcester Volunteer Fire Department. Mr. Drake shared that on November 10th at approximately 
10:07 AM. The sprinkler system contained the fire, and surrounding fire departments responded to 
assist. The damage was limited to the small room where the fire originated. Some additional smoke 
damage was sustained in the upper floors. Mr. Drake thanked the many agencies who supported the 
department during this incident. Mr. Drake confirmed the department is fully operational, and no 
injuries were sustained in the fire and no one was in the building at the time of the fire. 
 
Chair DeLello asked if the underlying cause of the fire had yet been determined. Mr. Drake responded 
that the cause was still being investigated; however, it is suspected a charging device was the origin. 
 
Chair DeLello asked if there was anything specific the department needed from the Township. Mr. 
Drake responded that some assistance with storage space could be needed depending on the weather. 
 
Supervisor Quigley asked what could possibly be learned by this event, specifically fire safety related 
to charging devises, and how that could be shared with the public as an educational tool. Mr. Drake 
responded and shared that, based upon his experience with the state fire marshal and state police, that 
use of properly rated extension cords, mindfulness with space heaters and not plugging space heaters 
into extension cords. 
 
Chair DeLello asked Mr. Drake to remain in touch with the Township manager for any needed 
assistance during the repairs. 

 



 

 

 Montgomery County Planning Commission – “Sharrow” Bike Lanes at Potshop Road (from 
Township Line Road) along Berks Road (to Rout 73.). 

 
Mr. Andrew Turner presented on behalf of the County of Montgomery regarding bike lane 
improvements “Sharrows” on Potshop Road and Berks Roads. He shared these roads were identified 
by PennDOT, DVRPC, and MCPC as feasible locations for sharrows. Sharrows are a portmanteau of 
the words “share” and “arrow” wherein the bike lane is located within the vehicle lane. As part of this 
agreement, PennDOT would install the sharrows during the next repaving of those roads and the 
Township would maintain the paint going forward. Once a signed letter is submitted by the Township 
to PennDOT, PennDOT would begin planning. 
 
Mr. Quigley asked about the county-wide scale of the project, and if other nearby communities were 
receiving similar upgrades. Mr. Turner shared examples in East Norriton, Whitemarsh, Upper 
Gwynedd, and Bridgeport. 
 
Chair DeLello asked if the approach to the sharrow design was based on limited space in the road’s 
cartway. Mr. Andrew affirmed that the purpose was to provide awareness to motorists and bicyclists 
regarding lane sharing. Mr. Quigley asked about the safety review process. Mr. Turner replied that he 
could share information with the Township manager. Mr. Quigley asked if the Township inherits any 
liabilities as a result of this modification. Mr. Turner replied that the roads are owned by PennDOT. 
 
The Township manager offered that the discussion of liability had been discussed by staff and MCPC. 
He shared that PennDOT has endorsed these upgrades as a safety feature, so as long as the Township 
maintains the upgrades as agreed, there should be no additional liability to the Township. Mr. Quigley 
asked the Township manager why PennDOT would not do the line painting themselves. He replied that 
his belief was that PennDOT simply doesn’t have the staff necessary to inspect and monitor the state of 
the improvements. 
 
The Board thanked Mr. Turner for his presentation. 

 
 

OTHER BUSINESS 
 

There was no additional Board comment. 
 

PUBLIC COMMENT 
 

There was no public comment. 
 

ADJOURNMENT 
 
The meeting was adjourned at 7:00PM. 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 



 

 

  MINUTES 
WORCESTER TOWNSHIP BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 

BUSINESS MEETING 
WORCESTER TOWNSHIP COMMUNITY HALL 

WEDNESDAY, NOVEMBER 16, 2022 - 7:30 PM 
 
CALL TO ORDER 
 
Chair DeLello called the meeting to order at 7:30 PM. 
 
 ANNOUNCEMENTS:  

The Solicitor announced an Executive Session was held on November 8th to discuss personnel 
and real estate. No decisions were made. 
 
The Township manager shared the meeting was being video recorded for future broadcast. 

 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
 

ATTENDANCE 
 

All three Supervisors were in attendance. 
 

INFORMATIONAL ITEMS 
 
 

PUBLIC COMMENT 
 

Ms. Deb Walker offered public comment on the subjects of picnic tables in open spaces and park 
spaces, and open space donations on the Township website. 
 
Ms. Susan Smith offered public comment. She welcomed the new Township manager to Worcester. 
Her comments related to meeting time advertisements at the Community Hall, and potential 
improvements for the recently acquired space at 3335 Fisher Road, specifically the planting of native 
pollinator species to attract the Monarch Butterfly. 
 
Mr. Burt Hynes offered public comment related to the recent Election Day and the Open Space 
Referendum. He shared an overview of local municipalities who had recently placed an open space 
referendum on their ballots. 
 
Chair DeLello asked Mr. Hynes if he followed the Limerick referendum. Mr. Hynes replied he was 
aware the referendum did not pass. Mr. Quigley encouraged residents to donate toward the open space 
fund. 

 

OFFICIAL ACTION ITEMS 
 

a) consent agenda 
 
Mr. DeLello offered that previously passed minutes from the October meeting had returned to the 
agenda because a quorum from the September meeting was not present at the October meeting to pass 
those minutes. 
 
Vice-Chair Betz motioned to approve a consent agenda that includes the following items: 

i. Treasurer’s Report and other Monthly Reports for October 2022; 



 

 

ii. bill payment for October 2022 in the amount of $280,336.29; 
iii. September 21, 2022 Work Session minutes; and, 
iv. September 21, 2022 Business Meeting minutes. 
v. October 19, 2022 Business Meeting minutes 

 

 
Supervisor Quigley seconded the motion. 
 
There was no Board or Public comment related to the consent agenda. 
 
By unanimous vote, the Board of Supervisors approved the consent agenda. 

 
b) Motions 

 
Township Engineer Joe Nolan provided an overview of the change order request. Due to the length of 
the wire run and the voltage needed, an additional modification was necessary. Chair DeLello asked if 
the work was part of the original estimate. Mr. Nolan replied that the work was in addition to the price 
originally quoted.  
 
Supervisor Betz motioned to authorize a Change Order for Mr. Kirk Park in the amount of $3,200.00 
payable to O’Malley Electric, LLC. Supervisor Quigley seconded the motion. 
 
There was no Board or Public comment related to the motion.  
 
By unanimous vote of the Board, the motion was adopted. 

 
Mr. Nolan provided an overview of the work at the Valley Green Treatment Plant. The work would 
improve the outflow quality at the plant. Mr. DeLello asked if this work was covered by the ARPA 
grant. Mr. Nolan replied in the affirmative. 
 
Supervisor Betz motioned to authorize a Change Order for Valley Green Treatment Plant in the 
amount of $7,195.00 payable to Dutchman, Inc. Supervisor Quigley seconded the motion. 
 
There was no public comment related to the motion. Mr. Quigley asked about the noise complaints 
related to the treatment plant. Mr. Nolan replied that noise enclosures and variable frequency drives 
were being installed as part of this project which will lower both the volume and the electric costs. 
 
By unanimous vote of the Board, the motion was adopted. 
 

c) 2023 Budget Presentation 
 
Township Treasurer Nicole Quagliarello provided an overview of the draft 2023 Budget. 
 
Supervisor Betz motioned to authorize advertisement of the 2023 Budget, as presented. Supervisor 
Quigley seconded the motion.  
 
Robert Fresnak offered public comment and asked if there was a copy of the draft budget available for 
review. Chair DeLello offered that the budget will be advertised following the motion, but before the 
end of the week. 
 

By unanimous vote of the Board, the motion was adopted.  



 

 

OTHER BUSINESS 
 
Chair DeLello asked the Township staff if the recent issues related to hijacking of official social media 
accounts is being monitored. 
 
 

PUBLIC COMMENT 
 

There was no public comment. 
 

ADJOURNMENT 
 
The meeting was adjourned at 8:01PM. 
 

(over) 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

UPCOMING MEETINGS 
 

Planning Commission     Thursday, December 8 7:30 PM 
 

Meetings to be held at Worcester Township Community Hall, 1031 Valley Forge Road. 



__________________________________________________________________ 
 

MONTGOMERY COUNTY COURT OF COMMON PLEAS 
__________________________________________________________________ 
____________________________________ 

      : 
YE YILAI     : Docket No.: 2021-20737 
      : 

: Property: 1423 Reiner Road  
vs.     : 

: Parcel No.: 67-00-00616-59-1 
: 

MONTGOMERY COUNTY BOARD : Tax Assessment Appeal 

OF ASSESSMENT APPEALS, et al. : 
____________________________________ 

 
ORDER 

 
AND NOW, this __________ day of ____________________ 2022, it is hereby 

ORDERED and DECREED as follows: 

(1) The terms and conditions of the attached Settlement Stipulation are 

accepted as terms and conditions of a binding Court Order; 

(2) The Montgomery County Board of Assessment Appeals shall make the 

appropriate change in assessments as agreed to in the attached 

Settlement Stipulation; and  

(3) This matter shall be marked “Settled, Discontinued, and Ended”. 

 

      BY THE COURT: 
 

      ___________________________________ 
                     J. 

 
Copies of the above Order mailed on ___________________ to: 
Catherine J. Nadirov, Esquire 

Samantha A. Magee, Esquire 
Robert J. Iannozzi Jr., Esquire 
Brian O. Phillips, Esquire 

Robert L. Brant, Esquire 
Court Administration – Civil 
 

____________________________________ 
Judicial Secretary



ROBERT J. IANNOZZI JR., ESQUIRE 
Dischell Bartle & Dooley PC  

1800 Pennbrook Parkway, Suite 200 
Lansdale PA 19446  

215-362-2474 
 
Attorney for Intervenor 
METHACTON SCHOOL DISTRICT 

__________________________________________________________________ 
 

MONTGOMERY COUNTY COURT OF COMMON PLEAS 
__________________________________________________________________ 
____________________________________ 

      : Assessment Appeal 
YE YILAI     :  

: Docket No.: 2021-20737 
      : 

: Property: 1423 Reiner Road  

vs.     : 
: Tax Parcel: 67-00-00616-59-1 
: 

MONTGOMERY COUNTY BOARD :  
OF ASSESSMENT APPEALS, et al. : 

____________________________________ 

 
SETTLEMENT STIPULATION 

 
Parties 

 
1. Appellant is Ye Nilai (“Property Owner”). 

2. Appellee is the Montgomery County Board of Assessment Appeals 
(“Board”). 

3. Intervenor is Methacton School District (“District”). 
 

4. Montgomery County (“County”) and Worcester Township (“Township”) did 

not intervene. 
 

5. The Board, District, County, and Township are collectively referred as 
Taxing Authorities  

 
 



Property 
 

6. The property, which consists of approximately 43,249 square feet, is 
located at 1423 Reiner Road within the Township and further is identified 

as Tax Parcel No. 67-00-00616-59-1 (“Property”). 

7. The Property is improved with a 6,195 square-foot colonial-style single-
family dwelling that was constructed in 2006. 

 
8. On June 5, 2020, the Property sold for $904,600.  

 

 
Appeal 

 
9. In 2021, the Property Owner filed an Assessment Appeal (“Appeal”) with 

the Board challenging the Property’s $518,900 assessment for the 2022 

Tax Year (effective January 1, 2022). 

10. After conducting a hearing upon the Appeal, the Board issued a “No 

Change Determination”. 

11. On October 20, 2021, Property Owner appealed to this Court from the 
Board’s “No Change Determination” seeking a reduction in the Property’s 

assessment. 
 
 

Settlement Terms 
 

12. Based upon the risks and costs of litigation, the parties have decided it is 
in their best interests to settle this Appeal based upon the terms and 
conditions set forth in this Stipulation. 

13. Accordingly, the parties, intending to be legally bound, and to bind their 
respective clients, agree to the following settlement terms: 

2022 Assessment: Effective January 1, 2022 for the County and 

Township Tax Years and July 1, 2022 for the District Tax Year, the 
Property’s assessment shall be decreased from $518,900 to $447,000. 

Applying the County’s 2022 Common Level Ratio (.447), this assessment 
results in a 2022 Indicated Market Value of $1,000,000. 

2023 Assessment: Effective January 1, 2023 for the County and 

Township Tax Years and July 1, 2023 for the District Tax Year, the 
Property’s assessment shall be decreased from $518,900 to $453,000. 

Applying the County’s 2023 Common Level Ratio (.396), this assessment 
results in a 2022 Indicated Market Value of $1,144,000 (rounded). 



 

14. The Property’s assessment shall remain at $453,000 for each subsequent 

tax year after 2023 and tax bills will be issued according to this 
assessment, until a change as otherwise permitted by Pennsylvania law 

has been made. 

15. Based upon the reduced assessment established by this Stipulation, all 
counsel agree that certain refunds1 are owing to Property Owner as follows: 

METHACTON SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 

School 
Year 

Old 
Assessment 

New 
Assessment 

 
Decrease 

 

Millage 
Rate 

 

Amounts 
Owing 

 

2022-2023 $518,900 $447,000 $71,900 .0316522 $2,275.79 

2023-2024 No Bill Issued Yet 

 
 

MONTGOMERY COUNTY 

 

Tax Year 
Old 

Assessment 
New 

Assessment 

 
Decrease 

 

Millage 
Rate 

 

Amounts 
Owing 

 

2022 $518,900 $447,000 $71,900 .003923 $282.06 

2023 No Bill Issued Yet 

 

 
MONTGOMERY COUNTY COMMUNITY COLLEGE (MCCC) 

 

Tax Year 
Old 

Assessment 
New 

Assessment 

 
Decrease 

 

Millage 
Rate 

Amounts 
Owing 

 

2022 $518,900 $447,000 $71,900 .00039 $28.04 

2023 No Bill Issued Yet 

 
1 The refund amounts shall be adjusted depending upon whether the taxes are paid 
within the associated discount, face, or penalty period for the tax years at issue. 



 
 

WORCESTER TOWNSHIP 
 

Tax Year 
Old 

Assessment 
New 

Assessment 

 

Decrease 
 

Millage 
Rate 

 
Amounts 

Owing 

 

2022 $518,900 $447,000 $71,900 .00005 $3.59 

2023 No Bill Issued Yet 

 

16. Within 15 days of the Court approving this Stipulation, the Tax Collector, 
if requested by the Taxing Authority, shall provide the necessary 

information to calculate the proper amount of refunds for all tax years at 
issue, including whether applicable payments were paid at face, discount, 
or penalty. 

17. The calculations set forth in this Stipulation are subject to verification by 
the Taxing Authorities’ Tax Collectors and/or Treasurers and their 

determinations are final. 

18. The Taxing Authorities will remit the following refunds in accord with 
Paragraph 14, as verified in accord with Paragraphs 15 and 16, as follows: 

 
Total Refund Owing: $2,589.48 

 

District: $2,275.79   
County:    $282.06         

MCCC:      $28.04    
Township:          $3.59     

                                                         $2,589.48 

 
Such refunds shall be issued within 45-days of the Court’s approval of this 

Stipulation. 
 
19. This Stipulation contains the statement of each and every term and 

provision agreed to by all parties. No other promises, representations or 
other inducements, oral or written, have been made to any of the other 
parties in exchange for this Stipulation. 

20. The attorneys entering into this Stipulation represent that they and their 
clients have full authority to enter into this Stipulation. 



21. This Stipulation may be executed in one or more counterparts and by 
facsimile or electronic mail, each of which shall be deemed an original and 

all of which when taken together shall constitute a single agreement. 

22. Each party shall bear its own costs as incurred. 

23. This Stipulation shall be binding upon, and inure to the benefit of the 
undersigned, their clients, successors, grantees, heirs, and assigns. 

24. This matter shall be marked as "Settled, Discontinued and Ended" upon 

the Court’s approval of this Stipulation. 

 
 
 

_______________________________________ 
CATHERINE J. NADIROV, ESQUIRE 
Property Owner’s Attorney 
 

 
_______________________________________ 

SAMANTHA A. MAGEE, ESQUIRE 
Board’s Solicitor  

 
 

________________________________________ 

ROBERT J. IANNOZZI JR., ESQUIRE 
District’s Solicitor  

 
 

________________________________________ 

BRIAN O. PHILLIPS, ESQUIRE 
County’s Solicitor 
 

 
________________________________________ 

ROBERT L. BRANT, ESQUIRE 
Township’s Solicitor 



 

 

WORCESTER TOWNSHIP 

RESOLUTION NO.    

 

RESOLUTION TO IMPLEMENT ACT 57 OF 2022 REGARDING 

PROPERTY TAX PENALTY WAIVER PROVISIONS 

 

 WHEREAS, Act 57 of 2022, amending the Local Tax Collection 

Law, was signed by Governor Wolf on July 11, 2022, and takes 

effect on October 10, 2022; and 

 

 WHEREAS, Act 57 requires taxing districts that impose taxes 

on the assessed value of real property to adopt a resolution or 

ordinance within 90 days of the effective date of the act, or not 

later than January 9, 2023, directing the tax collector to waive 

additional charges for real estate taxes in certain situations; 

and 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, it is hereby resolved and enacted by the Board 

of Supervisors of Worcester Township, Montgomery County, 

Pennsylvania as follows: 

Pursuant to the authority of the Second Class Township Code, 

the Board of Supervisors hereby directs the tax collector to comply 

with the provisions of Act 57 and this resolution for tax years 

beginning on or after January 1, 2023. 

DEFINITIONS: 

The following words and phrases shall have the meanings given 

to them within this resolution unless the context clearly indicates 

otherwise: 

Additional charge: Any interest, fee, penalty, or charge 

accruing to and in excess of the face amount of the real 

estate tax as provided in the real estate tax notice. 

Qualifying event:  

1. For the purposes of real property, the date of transfer of 

ownership.  

2. For manufactured or mobile homes, the date of transfer of 

ownership or the date a lease agreement commences for the 

original location or relocation of a manufactured or mobile 

home on a parcel of land not owned by the owner of the 

manufactured or mobile home.  



 

 

The term does not include the renewal of a lease for the same 

location. 

Tax Collector: The elected tax collector for Worcester 

Township, Montgomery County, any authorized or designated 

delinquent tax collector, the Montgomery County Tax Claim 

Bureau, or any alternative collector of taxes as provided for 

in the act of July 7, 1947 (P.L.1368, No.542), known as the 

“Real Estate Tax Sale Law,” an employee, agent or assignee 

authorized to collect the tax, a purchaser of claim for the 

tax or any other person authorized by law or contract to 

secure collection of, or take any action at law or in equity 

against the person or property of the taxpayer for the real 

estate tax or amounts, liens or claims derived from the real 

estate tax. 

WAIVER: 

The Tax Collector shall, for tax years beginning on and after 

January 1, 2023, grant a request to waive additional charges for 

real estate taxes if the taxpayer complies with all of the following 

requirements:  

A. Provides a waiver request of additional charges, on a form 

provided by the state Department of Community and Economic 

Development, to the Tax Collector in possession of the claim 

within twelve (12) months of a qualifying event; 

B. Attests that a tax notice was not received; and 

C. Provides the Tax Collector in possession of the claim with 

one of the following: 

1. A copy of the deed showing the date of real property 

transfer; or 

2. A copy of the title following the acquisition of a 

mobile or manufactured home subject to taxation as real 

estate showing the date of issuance or a copy of an 

executed lease agreement between the owner of a mobile 

or manufactured home and the owner of a parcel of land 

on which the mobile or manufactured home will be situated 

showing the date the lease commences; and 

D. Pays the face value amount of the tax notice for the real 

estate tax with the waiver request. 

 



 

 

RESOLVED and ENACTED this    day of ________________, 

2022, by the Worcester Township Board of Supervisors. 

WORCESTER TOWNSHIP 

BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 

 

__________________________________ 

Rick DeLello, Chairman 

 
  

 ATTEST: 
 
 

__________________________________ 

Sean Halbom, Township Secretary 



3850-FM-BCW0356    Rev. 5/2016 COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA DEP Code No. 
 DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION 1-46962-216-3J 

BUREAU OF CLEAN WATER 

RESOLUTION FOR PLAN REVISION 
FOR NEW LAND DEVELOPMENT 

 

RESOLUTION OF THE (SUPERVISORS) (COMMISSIONERS) (COUNCILMEN) of Worcester  

(TOWNSHIP) (BOROUGH) (CITY), Montgomery  COUNTY, PENNSYLVANIA (hereinafter “the municipality”). 

 

 WHEREAS Section 5 of the Act of January 24, 1966, P.L. 1535, No. 537, known as the Pennsylvania Sewage 

Facilities Act, as Amended, and the rules and Regulations of the Pennsylvania Department of Environmental Protection 

(DEP) adopted thereunder, Chapter 71 of Title 25 of the Pennsylvania Code, require the municipality to adopt an Official 

Sewage Facilities Plan providing for sewage services adequate to prevent contamination of waters of the Commonwealth 

and/or environmental health hazards from sewage wastes, and to revise said plan whenever it is necessary to determine 

whether a proposed method of sewage disposal for a new land development conforms to a comprehensive program of 

pollution control and water quality management, and 

 
 WHEREAS Toll Mid-Atlantic L.P. Company, Inc. has proposed the development of a parcel of land identified as 
 land developer 

Zacharczuk Tract , and described in the attached Sewage Facilities Planning Module, and  
 name of subdivision 

proposes that such subdivision be served by:  (check all that apply),  sewer tap-ins,  sewer extension,  new 

treatment facility,  individual onlot systems,  community onlot systems,  spray irrigation,  retaining tanks,  

other, (please specify).        

 
 WHEREAS, Worcester Township  finds that the subdivision described in the attached  
 municipality 

Sewage Facilities Planning Module conforms to applicable sewage related zoning and other sewage related municipal 

ordinances and plans, and to a comprehensive program of pollution control and water quality management. 

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the (Supervisors) (Commissioners) (Councilmen) of the (Township) 

(Borough) (City) of Worcester  hereby adopt and submit to DEP for its approval as a revision to the 

“Official Sewage Facilities Plan” of the municipality the above referenced Sewage Facilities Planning Module which is 

attached hereto. 

 
 I  , Secretary,        
 (Signature) 

Township Board of Supervisors (Borough Council) (City Councilmen), hereby certify that the foregoing is a true copy of  

the Township (Borough) (City) Resolution #       , adopted,       , 20      . 

 

Municipal Address: 

 

Worcester Township  Seal of 

1721 South Valley Forge Road  Governing Body 

Worcester, PA 19490  

Telephone 610-584-1410  



Resolution 2022-__ 
Page 1 of 8 

wfm 12142022 

 
TOWNSHIP OF WORCESTER 

MONTGOMERY COUNTY, PENNSYLVANIA 
 

RESOLUTION 2022-___ 
 

A RESOLUTION TO GRANT PRELIMINARY APPROVAL OF 
THE ZACHARCZUK TRACT SUBDIVISION 

 
 
WHEREAS, Toll-Mid-Atlantic LP (“Applicant”) has submitted a Plan of 
subdivision to Worcester Township and has made application for 
Preliminary Plan Approval of the Plan known as the Zacharczuk Property 
on Skippack Pike.  The Applicant is the equitable owner of approximately 
34.57 acres at 2581 Skippack Pike, Worcester Township, Montgomery County, 
PA, in the AGR-Agricultural Zoning District, said parcel being Tax Parcel 
No. 67-00-03286-004, as more fully described in the Deed recorded in the 
Montgomery County Recorder of Deeds Office; and,  
 
WHEREAS, the Applicant proposes the subdivision of the property into 
sixteen (16) building lots to be served with a new cul-de-sac road, 
utilizing option 1 of the Conservation Subdivision Design (the 
“Development”); and 
 
WHEREAS, said plan received a recommendation for Preliminary Plan 
Approval by the Worcester Township Planning Commission at their meeting 
on November 10, 2022; and  
 
WHEREAS, the Preliminary Plan of Subdivision was prepared by STA 
Engineering, Inc. consisting of 33 sheets dated July 1, 2022 last revised 
October 3, 2022, an E & S Control and PCSM Plan narrative prepared by 
STA Engineering, Inc. dated July 1, 2022 last revised October 3, 2022, 
and a Stormwater Infiltration Report prepared by GTA, Inc. dated July 
14, 2022, and associated documentation; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Preliminary Plan is now in a form suitable for Preliminary 
Plan Approval (the “Plan(s)” or “Preliminary Plan”) by the Worcester 
Township Board of Supervisors, subject to certain conditions. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, IN CONSIDERATION OF THE FOREGOING, 
 
IT IS HEREBY RESOLVED by the Board of Supervisors of Worcester Township, 
as follows: 
 
1. Approval of Plan.  The Preliminary Plan proposed by STA 

Engineering, Inc. as described above is hereby granted Preliminary 
Approval, subject to the conditions set forth below. 

 



Resolution 2022-__ 
Page 2 of 8 

 
wfm 12142022 
 

2. Conditions of Approval.  The approval of the Preliminary Plan is 
subject to strict compliance with the following conditions:  

 
A. Compliance with all comments and conditions set forth in the 

CKS Engineers, Inc. letter of October 20, 2022, relative to 
the Plan. 

 
B. Compliance with all comments and conditions set forth in the 

McMahon traffic review letter dated October 27, 2022. 
 

C. Payment to the Township of a Traffic Impact Fee, in the total 
amount of $71,586.00, which shall be paid on a per lot basis 
and at the time of submission of a building permit application 
for each of the dwellings to be built on 16 lots, in the amount 
of $4,474.13.00 per lot.  
 

D. The Open Space Stormwater Management Facilities, basins, BMPs, 
stormwater management pipes, and related apparatus outside of 
Road A right-of-way shall be maintained by the Homeowners 
Association.  A Declaration of Covenants setting forth the 
Homeowners Association’s obligations regarding same, in form 
satisfactory to the Township Solicitor and Engineer, shall be 
recorded contemporaneously with the Final Plan. 

 
E. Payment to Worcester Township of a voluntary contribution in 

the amount of $80,000 for 301 trees in-lieu-of required 
plantings, pursuant to the waiver contained in Paragraph 3.H 
below.   
 

F. Prior to recording of the Final Plan, Applicant shall purchase 
16 EDUs from Upper Gwynedd Township and provide confirmation 
of same to the Township.   
 

G. The approval and/or receipt of permits required from any and 
all outside agencies, including but not limited to, Montgomery 
County Conservation District, Pennsylvania Department of 
Environmental Protection, Pennsylvania Department of 
Transportation, North Penn Water Authority, and Upper Gwynedd 
Township Sewer Authority, the receipt of will-serve letters 
from all applicable utilities, and all other authorities, 
agencies, municipalities, and duly constituted public 
authorities having jurisdiction in any way over the 
development. 
 

H. In the event the Applicant elects to proceed with construction 
of the Development in phases, the record Plan shall be revised 
to reflect only the applicable phase or phases (“Phase Plan”); 
prior to recording the Preliminary/Final Plan or any Phase 



Resolution 2022-__ 
Page 3 of 8 

 
wfm 12142022 
 

Plan, Applicant shall enter into a Land Development and 
Financial Security Agreement (“Agreement”) with the Township 
for the applicable phase or phases.  The Agreement shall be in 
a form satisfactory to the Township Solicitor, and the 
Applicant shall obligate itself to complete all of the 
improvements shown on the Plans in accordance with applicable 
Township criteria and specifications, as well as to secure the 
completion of the public improvements by posting financial 
security as required by the Pennsylvania Municipalities 
Planning Code, and in form satisfactory to the Township 
Solicitor.  

 
I. Prior to recording the Final Plan, Applicant shall enter into 

a Land Development and Financial Security Agreement 
(“Agreement”) with the Township.  The Agreement shall be in a 
form satisfactory to the Township Solicitor, and the Applicant 
shall obligate itself to complete all of the improvements shown 
on the Plans in accordance with applicable Township criteria 
and specifications, as well as to secure the completion of the 
public improvements by posting financial security as required 
by the Pennsylvania Municipalities Planning Code, and in form 
satisfactory to the Township Solicitor. 

 
J. Applicant agrees to provide Township with estimated costs 

for financial security and establish financial security 
for all public improvements, to the satisfaction of the 
Township engineer, prior to Final Plan recording and 
issuance of any building, grading or other permits.  
Applicant shall provide financial security, as required 
by the Township for all work that falls under their 
responsibility per the approved Plan. 

 
K. The Applicant shall obtain a demolition permit prior to 

the demolition of any existing structures.   
 

L. Execution of an Intermunicipal Agreement between the Township 
of Worcester, and the Township of Upper Gwynedd, in form 
satisfactory to the Worcester Township Solicitor, prior to 
recording of the Final Plan.   
 

M. Following approval of the Final Plan, the Applicant shall 
provide to the Township for signature that number of Final 
Plans required for recording and filing with the various 
Departments of Montgomery County, plus an additional three (3) 
Plans to be retained by the Township, and the Applicant shall 
have all Plans recorded, and the Applicant return the three 



Resolution 2022-__ 
Page 4 of 8 

 
wfm 12142022 
 

(3) Plans to the Township within seven (7) days of Plan 
recording.  

 
N. The Applicant shall provide a copy of the recorded Final Plan 

in an electronic format acceptable to the Township Engineer, 
within seven (7) days of Plan recording.   

 
O. The Applicant shall make payment of all outstanding review fees 

and other charges due to the Township prior to Final Plan 
recording.  

 
P. The Development shall be constructed in strict accordance with 

the content of the Final Plan, notes on the Plan and the terms 
and conditions of this Resolution and the Resolution of Final 
Plan Approval.   

 
Q. The cost of accomplishing, satisfying, and meeting all of the 

terms and conditions and requirements of the Plans, notes to 
the Plans, this Resolution, the Final Approval Resolution, and 
any required agreements shall be borne entirely by the 
Applicant, and shall be at no cost to the Township.  

 
R. Applicant shall provide the Township Manager and the Township 

Engineer with at least seventy-two (72) hour notice prior to 
the initiation of any grading or ground clearing, whether for 
the construction of public improvements or in connection with 
any portion of the Development.  

 
S. Applicant understands that it will not be granted Township 

building or grading permits until the Final Plan, financial 
security, and all appropriate development and financial 
security agreements, easements, and other required legal 
documents are approved by the Township and recorded with the 
Montgomery County Recorder of Deeds and all appropriate 
approvals and/or permits from Township or other agencies for 
the above mentioned project are received.  Any work performed 
on this project without the proper permits, approvals, and 
agreements in place will be stopped.  
 

T. Applicant shall execute a Stormwater Management BMP 
Operations and Maintenance Agreement and Declaration of 
Stormwater Easement in favor of the Township, 
satisfactory to the Township Solicitor, which shall be 
recorded simultaneously with the Plan.  

 
3. Waivers.  Unless stated otherwise in this Resolution, this 

Preliminary Plan Approval shall not constitute the granting of any 



Resolution 2022-__ 
Page 5 of 8 

 
wfm 12142022 
 

additional waivers or deferrals except as set forth herein.  All 
additional requested waivers and deferrals will be considered at 
the time of Final Plan Approval.  If the Final Plan is not compliant 
with the Zoning or Subdivision and Land Development Ordinance of 
the Township, then this approval does not grant permission for said 
noncompliance because at the time of Final Plan Approval, the 
Township will either permit the noncompliance by additional waivers 
or will deny the additional waiver request and, possibly, deny the 
Final Plan.   

 
The Worcester Township Board of Supervisors hereby grants the 
following waivers requested with respect to this Plan:   

 
A. § 130-15.2.B.(2) of the Worcester Township Subdivision and 

Land Development Ordinance – a waiver to not provide the 
common greens so the proposed development can be condensed 
which significantly reduced the existing tree removal; 
 

B. § 130-16.B.(4)(d) of the Worcester Township Subdivision and 
Land Development Ordinance – a waiver to allow a maximum grade 
from 3% to 7% along the curb line at the intersection with 
Skippack Pike; 

 
 

C. § 130-16.C.(1)(a)(4) of the Worcester Township Subdivision 
and Land Development Ordinance – a waiver to allow Road A to 
be 28 feet wide; 

 
D. § 130-16.C.(1)(a)[5][b][v] of the Worcester Township 

Subdivision and Land Development Ordinance – a waiver to allow 
the cul-de-sac length to be approximately 1,520 feet in 
length; an emergency access easement shall be provided to 
Bethel Road; 

 
E. § 130-16.E.(16) of the Worcester Township Subdivision and 

Land Development Ordinance – a waiver to allow the slope 
within the intersection of Road A to be 3%; 

 
F. § 130-18.A.1 of the Worcester Township Subdivision and Land 

Development Ordinance – a waiver to not provide sidewalks 
along Skippack Pike and Bethel Road;   

 
G. § 130-18.B.(1)(a) of the Worcester Township Subdivision and 

Land Development Ordinance – a waiver to allow the use of 
Belgian block curb for Road A only; 

 
H. § 130-28.F.(7)(b) of the Worcester Township Subdivision and 

Land Development Ordinance – a waiver from the requirement of 



Resolution 2022-__ 
Page 6 of 8 

 
wfm 12142022 
 

providing replacement trees if greater than 25 percent of the 
existing trees with a 6 inch or greater trunk diameter are 
removed; the Applicant shall pay a voluntary contribution in 
lieu thereof in the amount of $80,000, which shall be paid 
prior to recording the final Plan;  

 
I. § 130-28.G(4)(c) of the Worcester Township Subdivision and 

Land Development Ordinance – a waiver to allow street trees 
to be planted at various locations throughout the property in 
addition to planting along the street rights-of-way;  

 
J. § 130-28.G.(5)(b) of the Worcester Township Subdivision and 

Land Development Ordinance – a waiver to allow existing 
vegetation that is to remain to count toward softening buffer 
requirements;  

 
K. § 130-16.C of the Worcester Township Subdivision and Land 

Development Ordinance – a waiver to allow a 38 foot  to 43 
foot cartway width along Skippack Pike and a 23 foot cartway 
width for the 50 feet of frontage along Bethel Road;  

 
L. § 129-18.H.(9) of the Worcester Township Stormwater 

Management Ordinance - a waiver to allow 3:1 maximum slope on 
the basin berms; the basin shall be fenced, maintained by an 
HOA and planted to establish a naturalized basin requiring 
minimum maintenance; and 

 
M. § 129-18.H.(10) of the Worcester Township Stormwater 

Management Ordinance - a waiver to allow flat bottoms in the 
detention basins to meet the requirements for an MRC design 
in accordance with current DEP standards; the basins will be 
planted to establish a naturalized habitat requiring minimal 
maintenance.   

 
4. Acceptance.  The Conditions of Approval set forth in paragraph 2 

above shall be accepted by the Applicant, in writing, within ten 
(10) days from the date of receipt of this Resolution.  

 
5. Effective Date.  This Resolution shall become effective on the date 

upon which the Conditions are accepted by the Applicant in writing.  
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Plan shall be considered to have received 
Preliminary Plan Approval once staff appointed by the Worcester Township 
Board of Supervisors determines that any and all conditions attached to 
said approval have been resolved to the satisfaction of Township staff.  
This approval DOES NOT represent nor constitute Final Plan Approval.  
Any changes to the approved site Plan will require the submission of an 



Resolution 2022-__ 
Page 7 of 8 

 
wfm 12142022 
 

amended site Plan for land development review by all Township review 
parties.   
 
RESOLVED and ENACTED this ______ day of _________________, 20__ by the 
Worcester Township Board of Supervisors. 

      
 FOR WORCESTER TOWNSHIP 

 
 

  By:________________________________ 
Richard DeLello, Chairman 
Board of Supervisors 

Attest:______________________ 
Sean Halbom, Secretary 

 
  



Resolution 2022-__ 
Page 8 of 8 

 
wfm 12142022 
 

 
 

ACCEPTANCE 
 
 
 

The undersigned states that he/she is authorized to execute this 
Acceptance on behalf of the Applicant and equitable owner of the property 
which is the subject matter of this Resolution, that he/she has reviewed 
the Conditions imposed by the Board of Supervisors in the foregoing 
Resolution and that he/she accepts the Conditions on behalf of the 
Applicant and the equitable owner and agrees to be bound thereto.  This 
Acceptance is made subject to the penalties of 18 Pa. C.S.A. Section 
4904 relating to unsworn falsifications to authorities. 
 
 

TOLL-MID-ATLANTIC LP 
 
Date: _______________________ 
 By:_______________________________ 
 
 _______________________________ 
 (PRINT NAME AND TITLE) 
 
 
 



wfm 12122022 

 
TOWNSHIP OF WORCESTER 

MONTGOMERY COUNTY, PENNSYLVANIA 
 

RESOLUTION _____ 
 

A RESOLUTION TO GRANT FINAL LAND DEVELOPMENT APPROVAL 
OF HUGANIR PROPERTY SUBDIVISION PLAN 

 
 WHEREAS, Mikelen, LLC (hereinafter referred to as 
“Applicant”) has submitted a Plan of Subdivision and Land 
Development to Worcester Township of the Plan known as Huganir 
Property Subdivision.  The Applicant is the equitable owner of two 
parcels totaling approximately 17.79 acres situate off of Artmar 
Road.  Parcel A is located within the R-100 Zoning District, being 
Tax Parcel No. 67-00-04162-001 and Parcel B is located within the 
R-75 Zoning District, being Tax Parcel No. 67-0-00103-001, as more 
fully described in the Deed recorded in the Montgomery County 
Recorder of Deeds Office; and  
 
 WHEREAS, the Applicant proposes to subdivide the 17.79 acre 
parcels into 9 individual lots, Lots 1 – 8 will be building lots 
containing new single-family detached dwellings, and Lot 9 is 
reserved for future development (the “Development”); and 
 
 WHEREAS, said plan received a recommendation for Final Plan 
Approval by the Worcester Township Planning Commission at their 
meeting on September 22, 2022; and  
 
 WHEREAS, the Final Plan of Subdivision and Land Development 
was prepared by Bursich Associates, consisting of 43 sheets, dated 
November 30, 2021, last revised July 18, 2022; and a Storm Water 
Management Report dated November 2021, last revised August 2022, 
and Wetland Report – Wetland/Waters Determination within: Huganir 
Tract, Worcester Township, Montgomery County, PA, dated May 2021, 
is now in a form suitable for Final Plan Approval (the “Plan(s)” 
or “Final Plan”) by the Worcester Township Board of Supervisors, 
subject to certain conditions. 
 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, IN CONSIDERATION OF THE FOREGOING, 
 
 IT IS HEREBY RESOLVED by the Board of Supervisors of Worcester 
Township, as follows: 



2 
wfm12122022 

 
 1. Approval of Plan.  The Final Plan prepared by Bursich 
Associates as described above, is hereby granted Final Approval, 
subject to the conditions set forth below. 
 
 2. Conditions of Approval.  The approval of the Final Plan 
is subject to strict compliance with the following conditions:  
 

A. Compliance with all comments and conditions set 
forth in the CKS Engineers, Inc. letter of April 6, 
2022 and August 29, 2022 relative to the Plan. 
 

B. Compliance with all comments and conditions set 
forth in the Montgomery County Planning Commission 
review letter of February 19, 2022. 
 

C. Compliance with all conditions set forth in the 
Decision and Order of the Worcester Township Zoning 
Hearing Board entered on May 24, 2022 regarding 
Application No. 2022-04.  

 
D. Compliance with all comments and conditions set 

forth in the McMahon Associates, Inc. review letter 
of April 11, 2022, and August 31, 2022. 
 

E. Payment to the Township of a Traffic Impact Fee, in 
the total amount of $25,000.00, which shall be paid 
on a per lot basis and at the time of submission of 
a building permit application for each of the 
dwellings to be built on 8 lots, in the amount of 
$3,125.00 per lot.   
 

F. Payment to Worcester Township of a voluntary 
contribution in the amount of $32,000.000 in-lieu-
of required plantings, pursuant to the partial 
waiver contained in Paragraph 3.D.   
 

G. Payment to Worcester Township of a voluntary 
contribution in the amount of $15,120.00 in-lieu of 
required sidewalk and curb installation pursuant to 
the waivers contained in paragraph 3.A. and 3.B. 
below;  

 



3 
wfm12122022 

H. Applicant shall purchase 8 sewer EDUs at $3,200.00 
per EDU.  The total amount due of $26,500.00 shall 
be paid prior to recording the Final Plan.   
 

I. The approval and/or receipt of permits required 
from any and all outside agencies, including but 
not limited to, Montgomery County Conservation 
District, Pennsylvania Department of Environmental 
Protection, Pennsylvania Department of 
Transportation, the receipt of will-serve letters 
from all applicable utilities, and all other 
authorities, agencies, municipalities, and duly 
constituted public authorities having jurisdiction 
in any way over the development.    
 

J. In the event the Applicant elects to proceed with 
construction of the Development in phases, the 
record Plan shall be revised to reflect only the 
applicable phase or phases (“Phase Plan”); prior to 
recording the Final Plan or any Phase Plan, 
Applicant shall enter into a Land Development and 
Financial Security Agreement (“Agreement”) with the 
Township for the applicable phase or phases.  The 
Agreement shall be in a form satisfactory to the 
Township Solicitor, and the Applicant shall 
obligate itself to complete all of the improvements 
shown on the Plans in accordance with applicable 
Township criteria and specifications, as well as to 
secure the completion of the public improvements by 
posting financial security as required by the 
Pennsylvania Municipalities Planning Code, and in 
form satisfactory to the Township Solicitor.  
 

K. Prior to recording the Final Plan, Applicant shall 
enter into a Land Development and Financial 
Security Agreement (“Agreement”) with the Township.  
The Agreement shall be in a form satisfactory to 
the Township Solicitor, and the Applicant shall 
obligate itself to complete all of the improvements 
shown on the Plans in accordance with applicable 
Township criteria and specifications, as well as to 
secure the completion of the public improvements by 
posting financial security as required by the 



4 
wfm12122022 

Pennsylvania Municipalities Planning Code, and in 
form satisfactory to the Township Solicitor.  

 
L. Applicant agrees to provide Township with estimated 

costs for financial security and establish 
financial security for all public improvements, to 
the satisfaction of the Township engineer, prior to 
Final Plan recording and issuance of any building, 
grading or other permits.  Applicant shall provide 
financial security, as required by the Township for 
all work that falls under their responsibility per 
the approved Plan. 
 

M. Applicant shall execute a Stormwater Management BMP 
Operations and Maintenance Agreement and 
Declaration of Stormwater Easement in favor of the 
Township, satisfactory to the Township Solicitor, 
which shall be recorded simultaneously with the 
Plan.  
 

N. Following approval of the Final Plan, the Applicant 
shall provide to the Township for signature that 
number of Final Plans required for recording and 
filing with the various Departments of Montgomery 
County, plus an additional three (3) Plans to be 
retained by the Township, and the Applicant shall 
have all Plans recorded, and the Applicant return 
the three (3) Plans to the Township within seven 
(7) days of Plan recording.   
 

O. The Applicant shall provide a copy of the recorded 
Final Plan in an electronic format acceptable to 
the Township Engineer, within seven (7) days of 
Plan recording.   
 

P. The Applicant shall make payment of all outstanding 
review fees and other charges due to the Township 
prior to Final Plan recording.  
 

Q. The Development shall be constructed in strict 
accordance with the content of the Final Plan, 
notes on the Plan and the terms and conditions of 
this Resolution.  
 



5 
wfm12122022 

R. The cost of accomplishing, satisfying, and meeting 
all of the terms and conditions and requirements of 
the Plans, notes to the Plans, this Resolution, and 
any required Agreements shall be borne entirely by 
the Applicant, and shall be at no cost to the 
Township. 
 

S. Applicant shall provide the Township Manager and 
the Township Engineer with at least seventy-two 
(72) hour notice prior to the initiation of any 
grading or ground clearing, whether for the 
construction of public improvements or in 
connection with any portion of the Development.  
 

T. Applicant understands that it will not be granted 
Township building or grading permits until the 
record Plan, financial security, and all 
appropriate development and financial security 
agreements, easements, and other required legal 
documents are approved by the Township and recorded 
with the Montgomery County Recorder of Deeds and 
all appropriate approvals and/or permits from 
Township or other agencies for the above mentioned 
project are received.  Any work performed on this 
project without the proper permits, approvals, and 
agreements in place will be stopped.   

 
 3. Waivers.  The Worcester Township Board of Supervisors 
hereby confirms the waivers from the provisions of the Township 
Subdivision and Land Development Ordinance as specifically set 
forth in Resolution No. 2022-15 granting Preliminary Plan 
Approval.  
 

A. § 130-18.A of the Worcester Township Subdivision and Land 
Development Ordinance – a waiver from installing sidewalk 
along the frontage of Artmar Road and the south side of Road 
A to lot 6.   
 

B. § 130-18.B of the Worcester Township Subdivision and Land 
Development Ordinance – a waiver from installing curb along 
the site frontage of Artmar Road and the extension of Windy 
Hill Road cul-de-sac;  
 

C. § 130-27.B.4 of the Worcester Township Subdivision and Land 
Development Ordinance – waiver from providing street lights; 



6 
wfm12122022 

 
D. § 130-28.F.7. of the Worcester Township Subdivision and Land 

Development Ordinance – waiver for replacement of all trees 
over 6” caliber in excess of the permitted 25% removal;  

 
E. § 130-28.G.5 of the Worcester Township Subdivision and Land 

Development Ordinance – waiver to permit existing vegetation 
to meet the landscape buffering requirements for buffers 2 
through 8;  

 
F. § 130-16.E.8 of the Worcester Township Subdivision and Land 

Development Ordinance – waiver to allow 20’ curb radius on 
the eastern side of Road A intersection with Artmar Road;  

 
G. § 129-18.C(2) of the Worcester Township Stormwater Management 

Ordinance – partial waiver to allow the use of HDPE for storm 
sewer piping in lieu of RCP outside of streets/right-of-ways; 
and  

 
H. § 129-18.H(9) of the Worcester Township Stormwater Management 

Ordinance – waiver to permit basins to have a 3:1 slope on 
both the inner and outer berms.   

 
 
 4. Acceptance.  The conditions set forth in paragraph 2 
above shall be accepted by the Applicant, in writing, within ten 
(10) days from the date of receipt of this Resolution.  
 
 5. Effective Date.  This Resolution shall become effective 
on the date upon which the Conditions are accepted by the Applicant 
in writing.  
 
 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Plans shall be considered to 
have received Final Approval once staff appointed by the Worcester 
Township Board of Supervisors determines that any and all 
conditions attached to said approval have been resolved to the 
satisfaction of Township staff and appropriate Township officials 
have signed said Plans and submitted them for recording with the 
Montgomery County Recorder of Deeds.  Applicant shall provide the 
Township with executed Final Plans, record plans, development 
agreements, easements, and other associated documentation, 
according to Township procedures.  Any changes to the approved 
site plan will require the submission of an amended site plan for 
land development review by all Township review parties.    
 



7 
wfm12122022 

 RESOLVED and ENACTED this          day of           ,  2022 
by the Worcester Township Board of Supervisors. 
 
       WORCESTER TOWNSHIP 
       BOARD OF SUPERVISORS  
 
 
 
 By:_____________________________ 
 Rick DeLello, Chairman 
 Board of Supervisors 
Attest: 
 
 
__________________________________ 
Sean Halbom, Secretary  
  



8 
wfm12122022 

ACCEPTANCE 
 

 The undersigned states that he/she is authorized to execute 
this Acceptance on behalf of the Applicant and owner of the 
property which is the subject matter of this Resolution, that 
he/she has reviewed the Conditions imposed by the Board of 
Supervisors in the foregoing Resolution and that he/she accepts 
the Conditions on behalf of the Applicant and the owner and agrees 
to be bound thereto.  This Acceptance is made subject to the 
penalties of 18 Pa. C.S.A. Section 4904 relating to unsworn 
falsifications to authorities. 
 
      MIKELEN, LLC  
 
 
Date: _______________________ 
 By:_______________________________ 
 
 _______________________________ 
 (PRINT NAME AND TITLE)  



Resolution 2022-XX 
Page 1 of 2 

 

TOWNSHIP OF WORCESTER 
MONTGOMERY COUNTY, PENNSYLVANIA 

 
RESOLUTION 2022-  

 
A RESOLUTION TO AMEND THE 

WORCESTER TOWNSHIP PERSONNEL MANUAL 
 
 

WHEREAS, the Worcester Township Board of Supervisors did adopt the Worcester Township 
Personnel Manual (“Personnel Manual”) on September 21, 2016; and,  

WHEREAS, the Board of Supervisors now desires to amend the Personnel Manual; 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Personnel Manual be revised as follows: 

1) Section I.B.4 – Added: During their probationary period, new employees are required to 
successfully complete training provided by the Delaware Valley Insurance Trust, and 
other relevant professional organizations, as determined by the Township. Failure to 
successfully complete training requirements, as determined by the Township, may lead to 
disciplinary action, including an extension of the employee’s probationary period, or 
dismissal. 
 

2) Section II.B.4 – Added: Alternate Work Schedule (AWS). At the discretion of the 
Township manager, full-time staff may elect to work a nine-day pay period. Those staff 
members who elect to opt-in to the AWS shall work an additional one (1) hour each day 
of the pay period and receive the 10th day off.  
 
Employees’ eligibility to participation in the AWS shall be determined solely by the 
Township manager. Certain employees may not be eligible for the AWS due to the specific 
nature of their position, or needs of the Township. Staff members participating in the AWS 
may be returned to the standard work schedule at any time based on disciplinary issues, 
or the needs of the Township. All grievances regarding time off related to the AWS shall 
rest with the Township manager, unless specifically addressed elsewhere in this 
handbook. 
 

3) Section II.E.5 – Added: Employees actively participating in the Alternate Work Schedule 
(AWS) are not eligible to also participate in the Seasonal Schedule. 
 

4) Section III.C1 – Amended: Up to 1 year of service (12 PTO Days) 
 

5) Section III.C2 – Amended: PTO leave will be prorated according to date of hire. For 
example, an employee who begins employment with the Township on July 1, 2023 will 
receive 6 PTO days for the period from July 1, 2023 to December 31, 2023. This employee 



Resolution 2022-XX 
Page 2 of 2 

 

will then receive 6 PTO days for the period from January 1, 2024, to June 30, 2024, and 
8.5 PTO days for the period from July 1, 2024, to December 31, 2024. 
 

6) Section III.F.B – Amended for grammar: “and” replaced by “or”. 

7) Section IV.F.1 – Ammended: Non-Public Works employees shall wear, at minimum, 
business casual attire during work hours, as defined by the Township manager. 

8) Section IV.F.3 – Ammended to provide $150 boot allowance to public works staff up 
from $125.00. The Township shall provide one pair of safety boots to all full-time and 
regular part-time Public Works employees at a cost not to exceed $150.00 per year. 
Employees purchasing safety shoes will be reimbursed the actual purchase amount up to 
$150.00, upon supplying the Township with a receipt for the purchase. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
RESOLVED THIS 21ST OF DECEMBER, 2022. 

 
FOR WORCESTER TOWNSHIP 

 
 

By: ____________________________________ 
Rick DeLello, Chair 
Board of Supervisors 

 
 

Attest: ___________________________________  
Sean Halbom, Secretary 

 

 





























































































































































  
                                                  

Page 1 of 1 
 

TOWNSHIP OF WORCESTER 
MONTGOMERY COUNTY, PENNSYLVANIA 

 
RESOLUTION 2022-___ 

 
A RESOLUTION TO ADOPT THE 2023 BUDGET 

 
 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, the Board of Supervisors of Worcester Township does hereby adopt the 
2023 Budget, dated December 21, 2022. 
 
BE IT RESOLVED THIS 21ST DAY OF DECEMBER, 2022. 
 
 

FOR WORCESTER TOWNSHIP 
 
 

By: ____________________________________ 
Rick DeLello, Chair 
Board of Supervisors 

 
 

Attest: ___________________________________  
Sean Halbom, Secretary 

  
 
 



Ordinance 2022-294 
Page 1 of 2 

 
 

TOWNSHIP OF WORCESTER 
MONTGOMERY COUNTY, PENNSYLVANIA 

 
ORDINANCE 2022-294 

 
AN ORDINANCE AMENDING VARIOUS 

PROVISIONS OF THE TOWNSHIP CODE 
 
 

WHEREAS, from time to time, corrections and other revisions are required to be made to 
Township Code of Worcester Township; and,   
 
WHEREAS, the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania mandates that municipalities have published in 
a newspaper of general circulation all proposed ordinances that make such corrections and 
revisions, at a great expense to municipalities; and, 
 
WHEREAS, Worcester Township consolidates such corrections and revisions into one proposed 
ordinance, in lieu of individual ordinances, so to minimize the expense incurred by the taxpayers 
in meeting this unfunded advertisement mandate; 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, the Board of Supervisors of Worcester Township, Montgomery County, 
Pennsylvania, hereby ordains and enacts as follows: 
 
SECTION I 

 
1. Chapter 150, Zoning, Article XXI, §150-147.F(1), shall be revised to read: 

 
Signs affixed to trees, fences, guardrails, traffic signs, traffic warning signs, 
bollards, delineators, street signs, traffic signals, traffic signal equipment 
boxes, street lights, utility poles, rocks, or other natural features, 

 
2. Chapter 150, Zoning, Article XXI, §150-177.A(1), shall be revised in part to read: 

 
In the AGR, LPD, R-175, and R-AG-175 Districts, structures accessory to…  

 
3. Chapter 150, Zoning, Article XXIV, §150-177.A(3), shall be revised in part to read: 

 
… In the AGR, LPD, R-175, and R-AG-175 Districts, excluding properties 
created pursuant to… 
 

SECTION II 
 
1. In the event that any section, subsection or portion of this Ordinance shall be declared by any 

competent court to be invalid for any reason, such decision shall not be deemed to affect the 
validity of any other section, subsection or portion of this Ordinance. The invalidity of section, 
clause, sentence, or provision of this Ordinance shall not affect the validity of any other part 
of this Ordinance, which can be given effect without such invalid part or parts.  It is hereby 
declared to be the intention of the Township that this Ordinance would have been adopted 
had such invalid section, clause, sentence, or provision not been included therein. 
 



Ordinance 2022-294 
Page 2 of 2 

 
 

2. To the extent this Ordinance is inconsistent with the Code of Worcester Township, the 
provisions of this Ordinance shall take precedence. All Ordinances or parts of Ordinances in 
conflict herewith are hereby repealed. 

 
3. The failure of the Township to enforce any provision of this Ordinance shall not constitute a 

waiver by the Township of its rights of future enforcement hereunder. 
 
4. This Ordinance shall become effective immediately upon enactment. 

 
 

ENACTED AND ORDAINED by the Supervisors of the Township of Worcester, Montgomery 
County, Pennsylvania on this 21st day of December, 2022. 
 

FOR WORCESTER TOWNSHIP 
 
 

By: ___________________________________ 
Richard DeLello, Chair 
Board of Supervisors 

 
 

Attest: ___________________________________  
Sean Halbom, Secretary 

 


	0BUS MTG AGENDA 12.21.22
	1 November Treasurer's Report
	2 12 02 2022 - Engineers Report -JJN
	3 12 02 2022 - Public Works Project - Status - JJN
	4 AWorcester Permits Nov 2022
	4NOV22_WVFD_REPORT
	5 11.16.22 BOS WS Mins
	6 11.16.22 BOS Bus Mtg Mins
	7 1423 Reiner Rd Stipulation
	8 Resolution Re Act 57
	9 Zacharczuk Res. for Plan Revision
	10 Resolution for Preliminary Approval 12-14-2022
	11 HUGANIR FINAL LD APPROVAL Resolution 12-12-2022
	12 Resolution to Ammend Empl. Handbook
	13 2023 Worcester Budget
	14 22-XX Budget Adoption Resolution
	15 Ord 2022-294 - clean-up ordinance - for distribution



